Finance Committee
City Commission Chambers
7-27-2025 9A

Agenda

1. Call Meeting to Order — Mayor Mahoney

2. Approve Agenda — Mayor Mahoney

3. Approve Minutes — Mayor Mahoney

4. Standing Items — Director of Finance Susan Thompson
Sales Tax Update
General Fund Financials — YTD June 2025 & YTD July 2025
General Fund Projections as of 2Q25

5. Discussion Topic(s):

2024 City of Fargo Audit Presentation
Brian Stavenger, Eide Bailly

Fall 2025 Refunding Improvement Bond (RIB)
Auditor’s Office Restructure
Budget 2026

6. Other Business

7. Adjourn

THE CITY OF

Fargo
FAR MOREé

pl-9

pl0-14
p15-16
pl7

p18-34

p35-36

p37



FINANCE COMMITTEE
Fargo, North Dakota

Regular Meeting: Monday: June 23, 2025:

The Regular Meeting of the Finance Committee of the City of Fargo, North Dakota,
was held in the Commission Chambers at City Hall at 10:00 a.m., Monday, June 23, 2025.

Commissioners present or absent were as follows:

Present: Kolpack, Piepkorn, Strand, Turnberg, Mahoney.

Absent: None.

Staff attending:  Director of Strategic Planning and Research Jim Gilmour, city
Administrator Michael Redlinger, City Assessor Mike Splonskowski, Finance Director
Susan Thompson, Assistant Finance Director Jamie Bullock, Solid Waste Director Scott
Olson.

Mayor Mahoney presiding.
Order of the Agenda:

Commissioner Kolpack moved the Order of the Agenda be approved. Second by
Strand. There was unanimous approval.

Minutes:
Commissioner Strand moved the Minutes from the April 28, 2025 meeting be
approved. Second by Piepkorn. There was unanimous approval.

Standing ltems:
Finance Director Susan Thompson said the sales tax report has been simplified:

e Assistant Finance Director Jamie Bullock consolidated the years, which
allows for a focus on overall trends rather than detailed breakdowns. The
new Public Safety Sales Tax went into effect in April and the first receipts
have been received and that tax is in a separate column on the report to
ensure accurate trend tracking and apples-to-apples comparisons with
previous sales tax figures. The overall percentage calculation for sales tax
year-to-date showed a decrease of 6% and it was explained that receipts
appear lower when the end of the month falls on a weekend and it is
anticipated this negative trend will reverse in the July returns.

PILOT and TIF Incentives:
Strategic Planning and Research Director Jim Gilmour provided an overview:
e | ow-Income Housing Incentives:
These are crucial for projects that would otherwise be financially unfeasible due
to rent restrictions, which complicate market value determinations. Currently,
738 low-income units benefit from these property tax exemptions. It is
anticipated that 3 to 4 new applications will be received this fall, with hopes for




greater success than last year due to increased State funding and extended
project development time.

e NDSU Neighborhood Housing Incentives:
Largely expired, and demand has decreased in recent years, attributed to a
potentially saturated housing market in the NDSU area and high property
acquisition costs that incentives could not fully offset.

e Downtown Housing Program:
Successful, with 888 units utilizing its benefits. Many of these incentives have
expired or partially expired, but an additional $100 million in property values
are pending, set to expire over the next 12 years.

e Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Districts:
Highly effective tool for expanding the property tax base without requiring new
infrastructure. Historically, TIF districts that began with a combined value of
$10 million have now expired at $400 million, demonstrating significant growth.
Current TIF districts are thriving, showing a $100 million increase from a $13
million base value, primarily through infill projects. New developments such as
Block 9 and Skyline will substantially increase in value upon completion next
year.

e Public-Private Partnerships (Parking Ramps):
Four City-involved parking ramps (Roberts, Mercantile, Northern Pacific, Block
9) developed over the past decade have added more than $200 million in value
to the City's core. Most of these agreements have another 20 years before
expiration.

e Riverfront TIF District:
A Renewal Plan approved in 2021 has already funded vital initiatives such as
the Minnkota Steel site clean-up and the Lashkowitz project. While projected
TIF revenues are available for future budget considerations, there might be
more potential projects than available funds, necessitating careful prioritization.

e Discussion on Incentive Impact and County Non-Participation:
Most incentives do not decrease property value. Projects that are not
financially feasible without an incentive would not proceed, meaning no
property taxes would be collected. A 10-year incentive delays tax collection but
ultimately leads to a larger tax base. Regarding the impact of caps on the City,
it was noted that a lack of full participation (e.g., the County declining) has led
to project failures, preventing benefits for the City, County and School District.
The City employs the "but-for" test to ensure incentives are only granted to
projects that would not otherwise occur. The County's strategy appears to be
immediate tax collection without contributing to incentives, thereby deferring
revenue for the City and School District.

e Committee Member Comments:
City incentives, such as growing the tax base from $10 million to $400 million,
eventually yield significant revenue. The County's focus appears to be on
immediate revenue due to its reliance on property taxes. Incentives have




enabled substantial growth outside the 3% cap, and the County's non-
participation hinders its own long-term growth. They emphasized the necessity
of evaluating the County's stance, citing that without incentive programs,
current low-income housing and many other "but-for" test-dependent projects
would not exist. They stated that without Downtown's significant growth over
the past two decades, property taxes would be 4% higher. It was noted that
the work done by Mr. Splonskowski and Mr. Gilmour validates the City's
disciplined approach to incentives. The phenomenal return on investment from
the City’s tax incentives demonstrates they are a powerful and vital tool to be
utilized with continued discipline.

Parking Update:
Ms. Thompson reported that a comprehensive parking study is currently in
progress, with more detailed discussions expected later this year:

e NP Garage Revenue:
Revenue for the Northern Pacific (NP) garage is tracking as expected. While
year-to-date figures are slightly below projections, additional revenue is
anticipated.

o Deferred Fee Increases:
The slight deviation from projections is partly due to the deferral of planned
parking fee increases. These increases are on hold pending the results of the
ongoing study, which will evaluate all available options.

e Operational Changes:
The study is comprehensive and is expected to lead to changes in parking
operations. A Request for Proposal (RFP) is being prepared for a management
company, and the study will thoroughly examine different rate structures.

e Discussion and Recommendations:
Mayor Mahoney observed that the Roberts Parking Garage often appears full,
especially during dinner hours. He suggested a $5.00 parking fee seems
reasonable from a user's perspective, indicating potential untapped revenue
that the study should investigate for the City's financial benefit.

e Centralized Oversight:
Commissioner Piepkorn noted the absence of a dedicated Parking
Commission, with parking, a significant part of the City’s budget, now falling
under Finance. He emphasized that this centralized oversight is crucial for
effective tracking, despite efforts to reduce the number of boards and
commissions.

e Re-examining Parking Revenue:
Commissioner Strand highlighted the ongoing study and upcoming RFP as an
opportunity to re-examine parking revenue. He suggested investigating modern
digital parking solutions used in other cities, noting that while North Dakota
once outlawed parking meters, current solutions might be legally permissible.
He recommended the City explore what other cities are doing and what is
legally allowed under State law.




2026 Solid Waste Rate Increase Proposal:
Solid Waste Director Scott Olson gave a presentation on proposed Solid Waste
rate increases:

e Overview of Current Waste Services and Rates:
The standard 64-gallon garbage service costs $9.00/month. Over 80% of
residents also opt for recycling for $4.00/month, making the typical total bill
$13.00/month. Included in these fees are access to the Household Hazardous
Waste facility, Residential Transfer Station, 20 recycling/yard waste drop sites
and annual Clean-up Weeks.

o Rate History:
Garbage rates last increased by 40 cents in 2007 and optional recycling was
introduced in 2017, with the last increase from $3.00 to $4.00 in 2020. Long
periods between increases are attributed to adoption of improved automated
technology (e.g., single-operator trucks); optimized staff deployment across
seven divisions, allowing for personnel flexibility despite City growth; efforts to
reduce maintenance costs by faster cycling of older equipment and introducing
newer units, despite rising equipment costs.

e Rate Comparison:
Fargo's rates are competitive with other communities in the state and region.
Fargo charges separately for recycling as it's optional, unlike many
communities that combine these fees.

¢ Regional Landfill Operations and Environmental Measures:
West Fargo, which handles curbside collection, disposes of its waste at Fargo’s
facility, factoring these costs into their operations. Regionalizing landfill
services helps keep disposal costs lower for Fargo residents and businesses.
West Fargo pays $51.00/ton to use Fargo’s landfill and Fargo also serves cities
outside Cass County, subject to a surcharge fee since 2023. West Fargo uses
its own trucks for garbage collection but contracts out recycling services.

o Environmental Measures:
The Fargo landfill operates North Dakota's only active gas collection system.
Gas from decomposing waste is captured via vacuum and collected gas is sold
to a local partner for use in boiler systems. Gas is also used on-site to generate
electricity, which is fed back into the grid.

e Glass Recycling:
Glass is recycled when market conditions are favorable and a partner is
available. Due to a recent market downturn and removal from all-in-one
recycling, collected glass is crushed and repurposed as a filter medium in
landfill construction on the west side of the landfill. This is a State-approved
alternative to purchasing sand.

o Operational Landscape and Future Planning:
Waste service rates have been consistent since 2007 (garbage) and 2020
(recycling), with commercial/landfill rates evaluated every three years. This
evaluation cycle aims to provide stability.




Rising Equipment Costs:
Since 2007, operational costs have changed significantly. Collection trucks
have seen a 40% cost increase and heavy landfill equipment has seen an
average 25% cost increase. Equipment endures significant wear, requiring
frequent replacement to limit downtime and prevent issues like uncollected
garbage or fire risks at the landfill.

Personnel Costs:
The shift to single-operator automatic trucks since 2007 has created significant
efficiencies, likely contributing to stable personnel costs.

Recycling Contract:
A new contract effective May 2026 will increase expenses by an estimated
$6,000.00 per month, dependent on market conditions and revenue from
materials.

Fleet Mileage:
Residential trucks average 10,000 miles/year; commercial/roll-off trucks
average 20,000 miles/year. A shift to front-load commercial trucks aims for
improved safety and efficiency, averaging 15,000 miles/year.

Landfill Operations:
Operations rely on high-cost equipment (bulldozers, compactors). An extra foot
of compaction on a 10-acre cell generates an estimated $1.2 million in
airspace. A tree shredder and wood chipper manage organic waste.

New Landfill Urgency:
The current landfill has approximately 17 years of remaining life. Long-term
planning for a new site is immediate, as siting and permitting can take up to 10
years. The goal is to secure a site for another 40 to 50 years. State funding
and low-interest loans have been used for major construction to avoid
increasing tipping fees or curbside rates. Evaluation of alternative waste
management technologies (incineration, gasification) is ongoing, but current
technologies cannot handle the daily 700 tons of waste.

Post-Closure Landfill Use:
Closed landfills can be repurposed into public amenities (parks, ski slopes),
though they are not typically revenue-generating. Waste settling continues
post-closure, and a 30-year environmental management obligation remains,
limiting some potential uses.

New Landfill Budgeting:
A reserve fund approach and incorporating future costs into regular rate
structures is a common municipal strategy. Land acquisition and infrastructure
costs would be factored into the existing three-year cost evaluation, amortized
over the new facility's lifespan, and reflected in adjusted per-ton rates. The
financial strategy choice is to accumulate cash or borrow closer to expenditure.

Landfill use:
Primarily driven by commercial (80%) and outside users: residential waste
accounts for only about 20% of total tonnage.




e Proposed Rate Adjustments and Public Sentiment:
Proposed increases include a $1.00 increase for recycling services and a $1.00
increase for garbage services. These cover all existing services (weekly
garbage, bi-weekly recycling). This proposed adjustment will keep Fargo's
rates among the lowest in the State and region. This is due to the landfill's
regionalization and user fee model, where increased volume lowers per-ton
handling costs.

e Future Landfill Rates:
Proposed landfill rates would increase from the current $51.00/ton to
$57.00/ton to cover new expenses such as debt service and user fees. High
tonnages are crucial to keeping this rate lower.

e Commercial Rates:
Determined by volume and cost-per-stop. A 4-yard container service would
increase from $86.00/week to $100.00/week. The proposed commercial rate
changes are anticipated to generate about $600,000.00 in increased revenue.

o Comparison to Private Haulers:
The proposed rates are competitive. Fargo allows private haulers for
commercial waste; rates aim to cover costs without undercutting private
industry or forcing residents to seek alternatives. These rates are well within
the typical range.’

o Non-Residential/Non-Commercial Buildings:
Waste from buildings with dumpsters is considered commercial waste.

¢ Public Satisfaction:
A 2024 community survey showed high satisfaction: 65% positive, 21% neutral
(over 80% not negative). Fargo's performance in waste and recycling service
quality is satisfactory compared to the national average.

e Mayor Mahoney's Summary:
Proposed changes to landfill and commercial waste rates balance cost
coverage with affordability for residents and the burden is strategically placed
on commercial entities, which account for 80% of revenue. Landfill rates
increase to $57.00/ton, factoring in new expenses while remaining regionally
competitive. Commercial rates will rise from $86.00 to $100.00 and this
approach prioritizes keeping residential rates low, supported by strong public
satisfaction from a recent survey.

2026 General Fund Revenue Trends and Budgeting Challenges:

o Revenue Shifts:
The general fund revenue trends for 2025 and 2026 show shifts. Property
tax is budgeted gross, with state payments for credits (e.g., the new $1,600
per person credit) reported as State revenue.

o Public Safety Sales Tax:
Allocations for Public Safety Sales Tax for personnel and technology will
inflate the budget's appearance despite being a net cost.




Moving Targets:

A significant example is the dramatic half-million-dollar shift in State shared
revenues, which recently went from a projected 10.5% decrease to a slight
increase, based on updated information from the League of Cities.
Charges for services are tied to the Engineering Capital Improvement
Program (CIP) and are thus project-dependent. While high interest
earnings from investments have boosted returns, future interest rates are
uncertain, prompting a call for more conservative budgeting. Transfers from
utility funds into the general fund are also in flux, linked to finalized capital
plans. Despite these moving targets, revenues are now projected to
decrease less dramatically than initially feared.

. » Revenue vs. Budget:

Revenue generated from Engineering and administrative fees surpasses
the Engineering budget. The budget is primarily based on planned projects,
and greenfield requests (new, unplanned projects) are not factored into
current figures.

« Project Complexity and FTEs:

It was noted that the complexity of each project varies, making a direct
correlation between project numbers and personnel time unfeasible. Fewer,
highly complex projects could require more personnel. The City's CIP
allocates $80 million annually for Engineering, and current personnel are
sufficient. Staff reductions would only be considered if new permits dropped
significantly from $700 to $800 million per year to $200 to $250 million.
Large projects such as the $500 million hospital also demand substantial
personnel. Much of the Engineering Department's staffing is dedicated to
ongoing responsibilities beyond construction, including utility locating, right-
of-way management and streetlight utility maintenance. These functions
continue regardless of CIP project volume. When the CIP grows,
Engineering relies on consultants and overtime. A slightly lower CIP would
likely lead to a reduction in the use of consulting engineers and less
overtime, rather than a reduction in force.
Prairie Dog Funds:

A reduction in Prairie Dog Funds is a reason why the CIP is likely to be
smaller next year.
Shift to Levied Tax Revenue:

The primary focus for City property tax revenue is now on actual levied tax
revenue instead of mills. Mill value is dynamic due to ongoing appeal
processes.

Loss of Flexibility:

Local governments no longer have the flexibility to assess mills based on
operational needs.

Fund Allocation:
Funds are allocated to the general fund, City special assessments (now
excluded from the cap) and the Airport. For budgeting, only 95% of the
general fund allocation is factored in to account for early payment discounts,




with additional revenue from mobile home taxes, prior year levies and
delinquent levies.

 New Revenue Cap Calculation:
The new property tax calculation operates under a revenue cap, set as the
greater of the base year or adjusted year levy, requiring three specific
calculations: Base Year Levy: Adds 3% to the highest total tax levied from
the past three years, after subtracting exemptions. Adjusted Year Levy:
Incorporates the previous year's levy and taxable value, along with net
changes to the overall base value from new growth (e.g., annexations,
changes in tax-exempt status), expired TIFs and expired exemptions. This
new growth figure, derived from the assessor's office, is also increased by
3%. Unused Levy: A third calculation exists but is not expected to be
relevant.

« Allocation Discretion:
Currently, there is no specific guidance on how levies within the City are to
be allocated, allowing for discretion in applying the cap, including Airport
allocations.

o Impact of State Credit:
It will be investigated as to whether the State covering up to $1,600.00 in
property taxes per residence could lead to a significantly lower delinquency
or delayed payment rate.

o Airport Funding and Hypothetical Reallocation:
It was asked if reallocating $1 million from the airport would provide the City
with $1 million, despite its estimated value being $1.7 million and it was
explained that the scenario would likely mirror past practices for handling
such situations, and the request would be for the equivalent of two mills.
The calculation would involve taking last year's two mills and multiplying it
by the 3% cap. If the Commission set a specific number, it would fall under
scenario two.

« Proactive Discussion with Airport Leadership:
Given the Airport's success in securing significant Federal and State grants,
a meeting with Airport and City leadership was suggested to avoid
surprises, understand the Airport's cash flows and determine the timeline
for receiving funds related to the new parking ramp (opening in August) and
its budget impact. The aim of this smaller gathering would be to proactively
discuss the Airport’s budget, assess the Airport’s financial health and gather
reactions before involving the full Commission or a Finance meeting.

Addressing Expense Side:
Staff is actively addressing the budget's expense side, as current expenses
exceed revenues.

Budget Workshop Meetings:
A series of budget workshop meetings are proposed for the week of July
14, 2025. Department heads will present their proposals, justifying their
importance and outline potential service implications. These sessions aim
to provide Commissioners with comprehensive information, including




departmental trends, FTEs and mission statements before the final budget
is presented.

Revenue Constraint Challenges:
The 3% revenue constraint poses a significant challenge for nearly all cities,
likely leading to service cutbacks and public dissatisfaction. With milling no
longer an option, efforts focus on scrutinizing the budget, potentially raising
the franchise fee from 4% to 5% and exploring other revenue
enhancements. Every department head is examining service costs and
potential charges, with a strong emphasis on maintaining core community
services.

Federal Funding Impact:
Discontinuation of Federal funding would lead to the elimination of the
specific programs it supports, resulting in a net neutral financial impact.
Other departments such as Planning and Engineering also receive Federal
grants for initiatives such as highway projects.

Primary Budgetary Obijective:
The primary budgetary objective is to align services and expenses with
existing and projected revenue, aiming for a sustainable financial model
rather than starting each year with a multi-million-dollar deficit.

Meeting Invitations:
Invitations for upcoming budget meetings will be distributed.

The meeting adjourned at 11:20 o’clock a.m.



City of Fargo

Comparative Sales Tax Analysis of All Sales Tax Revenue - ACCRUAL BASIS
PB: SS/KAC (prior to 2022)

7/22/2025

month County Annual County County PSST Infra & FC Total City Annual City City
Payment Date collected Amount Collections Growth % Amount Amount Amount Collections Growth %

2025 Collections 10,810,049.09| -1.36% I 34,359,205.69' -3.08% l

8/21/2025 June-25 2,270,466.69 803,789.60 6,430,316.85  7,234,106.45

7/22/2025 May-25 2,053,576.19 749,363.21 5,994,905.70  6,744,268.91

6/20/2025 Apr-25 1,616,213.54 600,695.48 4,805,564.00  5,406,259.48

5/21/2025 Mar-25 1,698,986.33 - 5,424,656.49 5,424,656.49

4/22/2025 Feb-25 1,477,568.31 E 4,523,059.25  4,523,059.25

3/21/2025 Jan-25 1,693,238.03 - 5,036,855.11 5,036,855.11
2024 Collections 23304,345.12 [ 0.86% | 69,824,744.71 | 0.83% |

2/22/2025 Dec-24 2,207,030.88 : 6,626,714.99  6,626,714.99

1/21/2025 Nov-24 2,281,112.22 - 6,540,733.39 6,540,733.39

12/20/2024 24-Oct 1,764,529.62 . 5,342,358.63  5,342,358.63

11/22/2024 Sept-24 2,257,740.11 . 6,622,406.84  6,622,406.84

10/21/2024 Aug-24 2,088,361.27 - 6,284,633.45  6,284,633.45

9/21/2024 July-24 1,746,626.42 . 5,168,111.30  5,168,111.30

8/21/2024 June-24 2,659,707.17 g 7,859,913.01  7,859,913.01

7/22/2024 May-24 1,348,902.41 . 4,252,926.43  4,252,926.43

6/24/2025 Apr-24 1,759,660.73 < 5,404,517.72  5,404,517.72

5/21/2024 Mar-24 2,276,388.27 - 6,980,911.25  6,980,911.25

4/22/2024 Feb-24 1,023,591.77 2 3,163,097.74  3,163,097.74

3/21/2024 Jan-24 1,890,694.25 - 5,578,419.96 5,578,419.96
2023 Collections 23,106,462.71 | 8.18% 69,250,461.96 | 4.02%
2022 Collections 21,358,922.89 [ -2.56% 66,571,120.26 | 4.28%
2021 Collections 21,920,710.74 | 31.11% 63,840,810.53 | 29.90%
2020 Collections 16,719,327.13 | 0.30% 49,146,842.57 | -5.00%
2019 Collections 16,670,136.34 |  6.04% 51,732,824.69 | 7.36%
2018 Collections 15,720,221.20 48,185,965.90

Totals Since 2018 $ 149,610,175 $ 2,153,848 $ 450,768,128 $ 452,921,976

10



“Ayuno] ssep/o8lie4 03 paainos Ajniloe ajqexe) Yiim sia|as ajowal Aq pawiodal Ajjaizoe ay3 apnjoul Jou op s|e301 asay) ‘dn 335 B sUIN3BL Xe) S3[ES 3L} ABM BY3 JO 3sNedaq ‘Os|y T

‘uIn3ad xey sajes yz0g J2qwiadag ayj uo pauodal aq pjnom pz0g JesA Jepus|es up pa3anpuod AjAie ajgeriodal |

‘8|npayas Suyjyy |enuue ue uo si JsAedxe] e

J1 ‘ajdwexa 104 "anpayds Juiyy Ajlaienb e wouy sajelnap jeyy Aauanbauy Buijy e aney Aew siapjoy Jiwad 3ey3 SI s1y3 YHm puiw uj daay Bujylawos ‘paiiodal a1am saseydund pue sajes ajgexe} ay3 Yalym Japun poisad Suijly sy1 0 si8jal JBLeND T

‘Jlewsa 1daqg xe| 1ad

suoday 1BONSIIEIS XB] 8SN PUB S81BS (N :BlB(-1a1uan) sMaN -1dag Xel N :821n0S

%88°9T STE'SZE'68S $ BWIT'ET %6P°'Se SZS'G9L'ESY $ 9498°0T %89°Z- 6EL'BEG'TOE $ LT TVS TLE $ Saeg ajqexe | a10Way palew|isy
906°98LTT  § 01E‘sL0'6 $ 740 4 T AV ve8'oEv'L $ (%z 18) Hodal Jo sSa0X8 Ul adueN|WaY
%E8°'0 Svi'ves'ss ¢ %C0'y z9voszien $ %8¢ 0TT'TLS'99 § T18'0¥8°€9 $ %Z ® 400 03 SEOUBNILIAL XB] |BNIOY
8£T'8E08S ¢ IST'SLT 09 § SYT‘6EE'6S $ L86°607°9S $ alay payiodal se saseyaind/sajes 01 pafidde ohz
%00°00} 126°L16°106'C § €19'161'800°c $ %0000} ¥12'196'996°C $ lge‘e6p'028'z$  obiey siejol
%20°0 %Ev 9¢- 196'9v¥ $ 110'¢0L $ %8900 %E9°6" ¥85'z28"L $ 192'910'c  $ obie4 §80IAJaS [BUOEONPT
%£0°0 %00°8€- ¥99°108 $ €L0'¢6Z°L.  $ %100 %ES'8€ 625'1ST $ 906681 $ obiey Bununy pue Bulysi4 ‘Aljseio ‘anynouby
%90°0 %TL Ly~ sTY'ovL'L $ goL'eze’e § %iL0 %¥¥ 98 l60'162's  $ 0zz'saL't  $ obue a|qepoday JON/IBUIO
%L0°0 %296~ LS¥'v90'z $ | 890'78Z'C $ %8070 %ET'S 0S¥'L2eT $ ye8LLZT $ ofbie4 sasldisjug pue ssjuedwo) Jo juswabeuepy
%020 %91°§Z- Ll¥'9sL's $ 0L¥1B9°L  $ %iTO %S0°€9 0l¥'vé0's  $ 8le've6'y  § obiey Buisnoyaiepn pue uojepodsuel |
%620 %128 ozv'osy's $ y08'862'6  § ¥ ,p.suv.!. Liv'SLELL  $ E.u,on_ou $ obie4 8duBINSU| puE 8dUBUI
%190 %¥ b L- 60L'0€5'6} $ veo,n«.....e.-u g - %LL0Z 99e'1/z'9L  § ozz'osv'el § ofe pawsy pue B 8jseM ‘Hoddng pue uiwpy
%bL0 %99°¢- 62¥'999°0Z $ 90e'0syIz  § ! %9.'8 690°2858'0 § 91'626'8L $ oBieq  seo|AIeg [EDIUYDS | PUB DYRUSIDS ‘[BUOISSBI0IH
%18°0 %S LY 189's6¥'cT $ Lzozs'ze $ - %blEl 11¥'900'0z  $ vl6'c69'2L ¢  ofiey S8HISNpU| [BINND puE UojeuLiou]
%E9° L %09°L TLY'ver' vy $ 089°'Z6.'cy ¢ s %18°LL gs0'6sLle  $ 06s'sio’zz  § oBie4 uojjealday pue JuswuepslUT ‘SHY
%06°L %0€°L- z£0'egL'sg $ v6cl88'as  § 9 %Lyl 6LZ°LIZIS  § 629'6v8'YY  $ ofiey (ulwpy dljand jdeoxe) seoinlag Jauyi0
%661 %v0EY- 0v8'z18'L9 $ 086'867°10} §  %6¥'82 009'czs'6st $ 002'08L'vZL $ obiey 20uBJs|ssY [BI00S pue al1e) YjjesH
%6LT %LE°G" 9€6'8¥0°L8 $ :ai.:_.n,c $ %¥L0Z 126'266'¥9  $ zo6‘0e8'es  $ obie4 Buisea pue |ejusy pue sjejsy |eey
%¥6°C %EL'G zZv'ese'vil § 99899.'801 § 9 - %Zy6l 9€.'v18's01L $ 166'739'88  § obie4 uoponysue)
%88'9 %869°6" Lee'oss'e6l  $ %¥EL 142 9ev'li'0ze %Sy LI Lg'9ev'z61L § 8gL'b/9'TLL § oBie4 Buunoenuey
%2991 %06°0" 950'sSZ'6LF  § %L0'9L %86'0- £8¥'800'c8y §  %08°LL £29'c8C'88Y § %0L¥ lge'ass'viy ofie| apel] 8|esajoym
%1081 %08°Z 0LL'v¥S'2Z8 $ %06'91L %L’ eﬂ‘.nnn..no.n {3 %998 Zc6'va808Y $ %0LSE yeviise'zyy § SGILEY $83]A18g P00 pUE UOHEPOWILIODDY
%88°Cy %29°¢- Yer'0LL'voZL § %lS'EY %Lb'h 18Y'616/045°L $ o Yele 801°228'e62°) $ _x:.s,@ clg'cec'ase’t$  obey eped] [1E3ay
IVIOL  HLMOWD IvioL VIOL  HIMON® V1Ol IVIOL  HIMOW® vi0L

% AMLSNANI  TVNNNY % AHMLSNONI  TYNNNV % AMLSNANI  TVNNNY ‘

vzoz £20Z zz0z 120z apoD Al SOIVN
¥¢0¢ - 120¢

Ansnpuj Aq saseyaing pue sajes ajgexe] ogie4

11



Home / News
/ Tax Commissioner Releases Second Quarter 2025 Taxable Sal

s Dat

D

a8}
[a¥]

Tax Commissioner Releases
Second Quarter 2025 Taxable
Sales Data

<< All News

Tuesday, August 19, 2025 - 02:00 pm

Tax Commissioner Brian Kroshus has announced that North Dakota's
taxable sales and purchases for the 2nd quarter of 2025 increased by
3.4 percent compared to the same period in 2024. For April, May, and
June of 2025, taxable sales and purchases totaled $7.08 billion versus
$6.85 billion in the prior year.

“While purchasing activity in the second quarter, particularly in the
industrial sector, indicates a relatively stable economic environment,
tariff-induced buying activity or front-loading by companies in advance
of trade agreement deadlines imposed on key U.S. trading partners,
likely contributed to the year-over-year gain,” said Kroshus. “The extent
to which that occurred, however, won't be fully known until the latter
part of this year and into 2026.”

Notably, utilities and construction rose by 87.1% and 10.5% respectively.
Retail trade, the state’s largest revenue category, also posted a positive
result, growing by 2.5% compared to the same timeframe in 2024. Arts,
entertainment and recreation in tandem with accommodation and food
services declined by 2.7% and 2.1% each.

“Overall, the state still experienced moderate growth during a period of
significant and arguably, unprecedented economic uncertainty due to
tariffs, which is encouraging,” noted Kroshus. “However, given the
unique set of circumstances, the effect tariff-related influencers had on

y o e £y i
£

12



buying behavior won't be completely understood until we see a return
to more normalized conditions.”

Performance of the top growth categories in the 2nd quarter:

* Mining and Oil and Gas Extraction - Increase of 7.4%
Utilities - Increase of 87.1%

Construction - Increase of 10.5%

Retail Trade - Increase of 2.5%

Real Estate and Rental and Leasing - Increase of 7.7%

Categories posting declines versus prior year during the 2nd quarter:

e Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation - Decrease of 2.7%
e Accommodation and Food Services - Decrease of 2.1%
¢ Transportation and Warehousing - Decrease of 9.7%

» Other Services (except Public Admin) - Decrease of 8.0%

“Regional performance for North Dakota’s largest cities mirrored activity
in the industrial space, with western communities including Williston
and Dickinson, posting significant gains over the prior year in contrast to
their eastern counterparts, Fargo and Grand Forks, which experienced
noticeable declines compared to the same period last year,” said
Kroshus.

Percent changes for the second quarter of 2025 (compared to the 2nd
quarter of 2024) for the largest cities in North Dakota were as follows:

* Bismarck - Increase of 5.2%
Dickinson - Increase of 7.8%
Fargo - Decrease of 1.5%
Grand Forks - Decrease of 5.7%
» Jamestown - Increase of 4.1%
Minot - Increase of 2.4%
Williston - Increase of 7.9%

Of the 50 largest communities in North Dakota, the highest percentage
of increases for the second quarter of 2025 (compared to the second
quarter of 2024) were as follows:

» Belfield - Increase 12.3%
Burlington - Increase 75.1%
Ellendale - Increase 17.5%
Mayville - Increase 10.5%

- Tioga - Increase 12.4%

173 SR
L)

13



Counties with the highest percentage of increases for the second
quarter of 2025 (compared to the second quarter of 2024) were as
follows:

e Bottineau County - Increase 23.3%
e Bowman County - Increase 17.0%
e Burke County - Increase 23.8%

e Nelson County - Increase 13.1%

e Sioux County - Increase 23.2%

For more information on North Dakota tax-related matters, please visit
the Office of the State Tax Commissioner’s website at tax.nd.gov or
connect with us on social media.

<< All News

Share this Page:

14



City of Fargo, North Dakota
General Fund - Budget to Actual

Unaudlted Monthly Financial Statements - June 30, 2025

REVENUES:

Q0 NG AW N-

Taxes

Licenses & Permits
Intergovernmental Revenue
Charges for Services

Fines & Traffic Tickets

Interest

Miscellaneous Revenue

Transfers In

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
9 General Government
10  Public Safety
11 Public Works
12 Health & Welfare
13  Culture & Recreation
14 Economic Development
15  General Support
16  Capital Outlay
17  Operating Transfers
18

Total Expenditures
Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures

Contingency (Salary Savings)

Amounts shown in thousands

YTD YTD YTD
Budget Actual Variance

$ 44,182 44070 $ (111)
3,274 2,696 (579)

11,806 11,251 (555)

5,988 5613 (375)

822 818 (4)

3,750 3,600 (150)

336 483 147

9,083 9,140 57

$ 79,241 77,871 $ (1,570)
$ 15,412 14,942 % 470
28,945 27177 1,768

7,588 7,460 129

7,722 7,548 174

2,858 2,715 143

104 391 (288)

902 656 245
59 104 (44)
6,920 7,092 (172)
(938) 10 (948)

$ 69,572 $ 68,085 $ 1,477
$ 9,665 $ 9,576 $ (93)

Building Permit revenue below budget; Timing with Health License renewals.

State Aid and Highway Funds below budget.
Timing with CIP Fee revenue.

Lower FT labor for Police & Fire.

Budget error: budget excluded final payment of NDSCS pledge.

Est salary savings budgeted here; actual salary savings reflected within specific departments.

15



REVENUES:

1

XN hWN

Taxes

Licenses & Permits
Intergovernmental Revenue
Charges for Services

Fines & Traffic Tickets

Interest

Miscellaneous Revenue

Transfers In

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
9 General Government
10 Public Safety
11 Public Works
12 Health & Welfare
13 Culture & Recreation
14 Economic Development
15  General Support
16  Capital Outlay
17 Operating Transfers
18

Total Expenditures
Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures

10
14
18

Contingency (Salary Savings)

City of Fargo, North Dakota

 General Fund - Budget to Actual
Unaudlted Monthly FlnanC|a| Statements - July 31, 2025
Amounts shown in thousands

YTD YTD YTD
Budget Actual Variance

$ 45,302 % 44942 % (360)
4,060 3,239 (821)
14,109 13,326 (783)
8,415 7,722 (693)

959 1,052 93

4,375 5,248 873

392 636 244

10,814 10,879 64
$ 88,426 $ 87,044 § {1,383)
$ 17,708 3 17,046 3 662
33,314 31,681 1,633

8,957 8,496 461

8,992 8,659 333

3,325 3,186 138
104 391 (288)

1,001 711 290
74 106 (32)
7,284 7,404 (120)
(1,094) 13 (1,107)

$ 79,665 $ 77,893 $ 1,972
$ 8,761 $ 9,351 § 590

Franchise Fees running below budget.
Building Permit revenue below budget; Timing with Health License renewals.
Highway Funds below budget.

Timing with CIP Fee revenue.

Lower FT labor for Police & Fire.

Budget error: budget excluded final payment of NDSCS pledge.

Est salary savings budgeted here; actual salary savings reflected within specific departments.

16



YTD 2025 Remaining 2025 YE 2025

Actual Estimates Projections
REVENUES:
1 Taxes $ 44070 $ 8970 $ 53,040
2 Licenses & Permits 2,696 3,678 6,374
3 Intergovernmental Revenue 11,251 7,227 28,478
4 Charges for Services 5613 10,941 16,554
5 Fines & Traffic Tickets 818 940 1,758
6 Interest 3,600 4137 737
7 Miscellaneous Revenue 483 220 703
7A  2025: Land Sale Proceeds 5,500 5,500
8 Transfers In 9,140 8,450 17,590
8A  New: Transfers In PSST 1,500 1,500
Total Revenues $ 77,671 $ 61,562 $ 139,233
EXPENDITURES:
9 General Government $ 14,942 $ 14290 $ 29,232
10  Public Safety 27177 30,443 57,620
11 Public Works 7,460 7,689 15,149
12 Health & Welfare 7,548 7,496 15,044
13  Culture & Recreation 2,715 2,977 5,692
14  Economic Development 391 (187) 204
15  General Support 656 855 1,511
16  Capital Outlay 104 44 148
17  Operating Transfers 7,092 2,014 9,106
18  Contingency (Salary Savings) 10 - 10
Total Expenditures $ 68,095 $ 65,620 $ 133,715
Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures $ 9,576 $ (4,058) $ 5,518
1 Franchise Fees - trending below budget.
2 Building Permits - trending below budget.
3 Reduction in Highway Funds as per legislation.
4 Additional CIP Admin/Eng Fees due to timing and additional projects.
7A  Anticipated proceeds of Solid Waste Land (net of 1.2M to Solid Waste for replacement land).

8A  Transfer In of Public Safety Sales Tax to cover approved 2025 related Expenses. (Net $0)
9-13  Anticipated salary savings reflected within department group, not contingency.

10 Includes approved 2025 Public Safety Sales Tax expenses - offset with Transfer In. (Met $0)

18 Anticipated salary savings reflected within department group, not contingency.

17



EideBailly:

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

CITY OF FARGO, NORTH DAKOTA

2024 AUDIT PRESENTATION

August XX, 2025

18



FIRM BACKGROUND

* Eide Bailly

* Top 20 CPA and advi

- With over 300 dedicat=:

government industry, ©

S
{

adyvisory, and consulfin:

1,200 governments loc.

18



SERVICE TEAM

Brian Stavenger, Partner
CPA with over 24 years of ¢

Braden Axtman, Senior Associate
CPA with over 4 years of cuc

Courtney Mosloski, Senior Associate
Over 4 years of audit experi:

Multiple other CPA’s and professionals complete the audit
team

20



* Performed in accordance with: B>

ée::rsc;lly accepted auditing < OBJECTIVES

Government Auditing Standar
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal F
200, Uniform Administrative R
Cost Principles, and Audit Requir
Federal Awards (Uniform Guic

* Designed to obtain reasonable, not
absolute, assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material
misstatement

21



* Planning — December — March P>

TIMELINE

Mixture of an onsite visit cin

* Year-End Testing — April/May

Wixture of onsite visits andl r«

* Reporting — June
'ssued audit opinion on June

22



-

Management’s Responsibilities

(=] 4]
Preparation and fair presen: Flnu“uul

'he financial statements in
s ok Statement

Audit

Design, implementation, ¢
naintenance of internal cc
relevant to preparation ¢
oresentation that are free
material misstatement, whe
‘'raud or error

23



PS>

Auditor’s Responsibilities

Financial
Statement

7

Obtain reasonable assurcr
~vhether the financial state
vhole are free from materi
misstatement, whether due

Audit

=rror, and to issue an audi
rhat includes our opinions

24



p>>

* Unmodified opinions

Financial
* Adoption of GASB No. Statement
101, Compensated Audit

Absences

* One finding

25



S>>

* Unmodified opinions on the

'rh’ree programs tested Federul

_.oronavirus State and Lo
‘ecovery Funds @
_apitalization Grants fo AU d III-
Vater State Revolving F
RIC: Building Resilient
hfrastructure and Comrr

* No findings

26



* Significant accounting il

estimates Letter to

Governance

* Significant risks
* Emphasis of matter

* MAA audited separately

27



FUND BALANCE CATEGORIES

Nonspendable Restricted Committed Assigned Unassigned

Represents Intended for
amounts that Legally a specific
cannot fbe restricted by In;e?d:gﬁf:r activity by R
SpE outside 6 board or e
; , activity :
parties designated

individuals
Not in

spendable
form

Imposed by
formal action
of the board

but is not
legally
restricted

Cannot be |
appropriated

for other

spending

Inventory,
prepaid
expenses

Not legally

“Rainy day”
restricted

fund

28



TOTAL FUND BALANCE — GENERAL FUND

The fotal fund balances of the General Fund for the past 10 years:

$50,000,000
$45,000,000
$40,000,000
$35,000,000
$30,000,000
$25,000,000
$20,000,000
$15,000,000
$10,000,000

$5,000,000

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

B Nonspendable B Restricted ® Committed [ Assigned ® Unassigned

29



FUND BALANCE — GENERAL FUND

The City’s unassigned fund balance as a percentage of expenditures in
the General Fund for the last 10 years:

40%
35%

30%

15%

10%

5%

0%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

W Unassigned as a % of Expenditures — ssms=Goal

30



FEDERAL DOLLARS EXPENDED

The total federal dollars expended by the City the previous ten years
are as follows:

$90,000,000
$80,000,000
$70,000,000

$60,000,000

$50,000,000
$40,000,000
$30,000,000
$20,000,000

$10,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

31



WHAT’S NEXT
* GASB No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures (2025)

* GASB No. 103, Financial Reporting Model
Improvements (2026)

GASB No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital
Assets (2026)

* Ongoing Communication — throughout the year
Online publications
Webinars
~ Access to specialists

32



QUESTIONS?

ifion is presented with the understanding that the inforr

ded 1o be responsive to any individual situation or conca
7. Viewers are urged not to act upen the information co
ional advice regarding implications of
sresentative, or to the presenter of this

a particular facr

33



THANK YOU

Brian Stavenger, CPA
Partner
bstavenger@eidebailly.com
701.239.8518

EideBai

CPAs & BUSINES

34



City of Fargo, North Dakota

Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series 2025D

Schedule of Events
(As of: August 15, 2025)

S M : R =S

M T W T F S S
1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 B
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 g 8 S 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 M
1 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 m 14 15 16 17 18
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31
31

November 2025 December 2025 January 2026
M T W T F ¢ S M T W S M T - :

1 2 3 5 1 2 3
2 34,85 B .7 8 9 10 [EfE 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
o 10 KEM 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 18 17
8 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 2 Bl 26 27 13 19 20 21 22 23 24
23 24 25 26 EEf] 28 29 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

m Holiday

w

00 -
~

"' Significant Action

Official Statement information request distributed. ~  BTMA
Thu, Sep. 18 Official Statement information due back to Baker Tilly. City Staff
Fri., Sep. 26 Finalize Bond structure and prépare Official Terms of Offering. BTMA
Thu,Oct.2  First Draft of Preliminary Official Statement distributed for BTMA

review.
Mon., Oct.6  Pre-ssuance Report and >[Authorizing/Parameters] Resolution BTMA

delivered to City. D&W
Thu,Oct.9 éahviyr;iéﬁtvéﬁt’éW‘Bwévkgr“ﬁﬂy on first draft of Preliminary Official City Staff

Statement. D&W
Week of Oct. 13 Due diligehwéé' form distributed for review. BTMA
Mon., Oct.13 éiﬁ;/Ebrr‘iyr‘ﬁissvi‘dh‘c'b‘yhéi'ders [Authorizing/Parameters] City Commission

Resolution i) authorizing the sale of the Bonds (5:00 pm

CT);

[ii) delegating awarding authority to certain members of the
City (Pricing Committee);

and iii) establishing parameters in which awarding can
occur].

Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC

85



Responsible Party

Tue., Oct. 14 Sec Official Statement and supporting BTMA
documents sent to rating agency and working group.
Week of Oct. 20 Rating Conference conducted. City Staff
BTMA
MIS
Week of Oct. 20 Due diligence call conducted. City Staff
(following Rating BTMA
Conference)
Tue,Oct.21  Comments due on second draft of Preliminary Official City Staff
Statement. D&W
Fri., Oct. 24 ~ Substantially final form of Preliminary Official Statement BTMA
circulated to working group for final review and sign off.
Wed., Nov. 5 Receipt of rating and ratiﬁg report. MIS
Fri,Nov.7  Distribution of ISF‘éVI"i‘r'l:linary Official Statement (with rating on BTMA
cover).
Mon., Nov. 10  Form of Award Resolution delivered to City D&W
is held).
Mon., Nov. 17 Sale of the Bonds (mBFﬁing). City Staff
BTMA

Mon., Nov. 17

Consideration for Award of the Bonds via [Special Meeting
/ Pricing Commiittee].

City Commission
[Pricing Committee]

Mon., Nov. 24  Distribution of Final Official Statement. BTMA
Mon.,Dec. 1 Draft closing memorandum circulated for review. BTMA
Fri,Dec.5  Final closing memorandum distributed. BTMA
Thu,, Dec11 wsﬂgﬁiéﬁ{éﬁf};ﬂf‘ﬁfﬁé Eﬁﬁaé; receipt of Bond proceeds. All Parties
Legend:

City Staff - City of Fargo, North Dakota (Issuer)

BTMA - Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC (Municipal Advisor)
D&W - Dorsey & Whitney LLP (Bond Counsel)

MIS - Moody's Investors Service (Rating Agency)

Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC is a registered municipal advisor and controlled subsidiary of Baker Tilly Advisory
Group, LP. Baker Tilly Advisory Group, LP and Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, operate under an alternative
practice structure and are members of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd . the members of which are
separate and independent legal entities. Baker Tilly US, LLP is a licensed CPA firm and provides assurance services to its
clients. Baker Tilly Advisory Group, LP and its subsidiary entities provide tax and consulting services to their clients and

are not licensed CPA Firms. ©2025 Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC

Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC

36



THE CITY OF

APPROVED

Fa r O 2025Budget  PRELIMINARY 2026
FAR MOREé BUDGET
GENERAL FUND -
REVENUE:
Property Taxes $ 43,825,380 | $ 46,005,858
Franchise Fees $ 12,162,224 | $ 12,022,424
Licenses & Permits $ 6,214,000 | $ 7,339,000
Federal Grants $ 3,025,131 | $ 2,744,309
State Share Revenues $ 21,769,740 | $ 23,017,946
Local Grant Revenues $ 1,784,022 | $ 1,878,707
Charges for Services $ 16,173,035 | $ 15,428,910
Miscellaneous $ 9,816,653 | $ 9,119,153
Transfer In - PSST (new) $ 5,878,917
Transfers In - all other $ 17,574,768 | $ 16,851,987
TOTALS $ 132,344,953 | $ 140,287,211
EXPENSE:
Salaries $ 70,961,137 | $ 76,600,341
Benefits $ 26,970,673 | $ 28,840,515
PERSONNEL EXPENSE $ 97,931,810 | $ 105,440,856
$ .
Other Services $ 10,623,318 | $ 9,805,496
Energy $ 2,243,658 | $ 2,228,618
Repairs & Maintenance $ 4,476,903 | $ 4,717,939
Supplies $ 3,659,627 | $ 3,543,492
Travel/Education $ 958,952 | $ 948,222
Professional / Admin $ 1,640,299 | $ 1,687,855
Other / Miscellaneous $ 1,742,752 | $ 1,737,102
Transfer Debt Serv & Other $ 8,857,329 | $ 9,011,631
OPERATING EXPENSE $ 34,202,838 | $ 33,680,355
CAPITAL EXPENSE $ 210,304 | $ 1,166,000
TOTALS $ 132,344,952 | § 140,287,211

2026 Preliminary Budget Book and the 2026 budget presentation are available on the City of Fargo website.

37




